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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF MISSISSIPPI ~TH£RH onn HJC1· ,JF MiSSISS1PPt 

FILED 

JAN -6 2025 
ARTHUR JOHNSTON 

. BY DEPUTY 

RICHARD ARJUN KAUL, MD; 
JANE DOE; JOHN DOE. 
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CIVIL ACTION NO.: 24-CV-00621-CWR-LGI 

v. 

JAMES PAUL OETKEN 
(PERSONAL AND OFFICIAL CAPACITY) 
MISSISSIPI MEDICAL BOARD; 
NEW YORK STATE ATTORNEY GRIEVANCE 
COMMITTEE; JANE DOE; JOHN DOE. 

Defendants. 

ADMISSIONS OF MATERIAL AND UNDISPUTED FACT NOT RELATED TO 
THE ISSUE PENDING THE COURT'S RULING ON THE MOTION AND 

PURSUANT TO RULE 8{b)(6} AS TO DEFENDANT JAMES PAUL OETKEN 

Respectfully Submitted 

tk- 1 

RICHARD ARJUN KAUL, MD 

JANUARY 5, 2025 
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RELEVANT REFERENCES TO THE KAUL CASES 

Kl-KAUL v CHRISTIE: 16-CV-02364 (FEBRUARY 22, 2016, TO NOVEMBER 16, 
2021-U.S.D.C.-D.N.J.) 

K11-7 - KAUL/BASCH v ICE: 21-CV-06992 (AUGUST 19, 2021, TO SEPTEMBER 12, 
2022-SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK) 

Kll-10- KAUL/BASCH v ICE: 23-CV-2016 (MARCH 9, 2023, TO MAY 16, 2023-
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK) 

Kll-14 - KAUL v GEICO: 23-CV-22325 (JUNE 22, 2023, TO AUGUST 23, 2023-
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA) 

Kll-17- KAUL v CPEP: 23-CV-00672 (NOVEMBER 20, 2023, TO JUNE 14, 2024-
EASTERN DISTRICT OF NORTH CAROLINA) 

Kll-18- KAUL v OETKEN: 24-CV-00185 (MARCH 25, 2024, TO APRIL 8, 2024-
EASTERN DISTRICT OF NORTH CAROLINA) 

Kll-20- KAUL v FEDERATION STATE MEDICAL BOARDS: 24-CV-03180 (AUGUST 
26, 2024, TO PRESENT-SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS) 

Kll-22- KAUL v BCBSA: 23-CV-01688 (DECEMBER 12, 2023, TO PRESENT­
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ALABAMA) 

Kll-23 - KAUL v OETKEN: 24-CV-00621 (OCTOBER 9, 2024 TO PRESENT­
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF MISSISSIPPI) 
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For ease of reference Defendant JAMES PAUL OETKEN will be referred to as "I" 

Kll-23 + Failure To Deny Bribes 

1. I admit that when I entered the knowingly illegal injunction on September 12, 2022, I 
instructed the Clerk of the Court to ensure Plaintiff Kaul was provided instructions on how to 
appeal in conjunction with an application to proceed in forma pauperis (D.E. 169-1). 

2. I admit that the purpose of encouraging Plaintiff Kaul to file an appeal to the U.S.C.A. for the 
Second Circuit was that I did intermittently sit on the appellate bench and was informed it likely 
I be elevated to the appellate court if Plaintiff Kaul 'took the appellate bait'. 

3. I admit I know that if Plaintiff Kaul did file an appeal, no other district court would admit any 
of his filings, and his claims would be restricted to the U.S.C.A. for the Second Circuit. 

4. I admit I knew that the Second Circuit would ultimately deny Plaintiff Kaul's appeal and 
validate my knowingly illegal injunction. 

S. I admit I knew that the validation of my injunction by the U.S.C.A. for the Second Circuit 
would forever preclude Plaintiff Kaul from filing any lawsuits in the United States District Court 
that had any connection, however remote, to any aspect of his professional licensing history. 

6. I admit I knew that if I succeeded in eliminating Plaintiff Kaul in this bureaucratic manner, I 
would have been permanently elevated to the U.S.C.A. for the Second Circuit. 

7. I admit that an elevation to the U.S.C.A. for the Second Circuit would have had the effect of 
permanently 'burying' all the bribery related quid pro quo crimes I had committed since being 
appointed to the federal bench in 2011 by a politician notorious even by political standards for 
egregious acts of political corruption. 

8. I admit that had I been elevated to the U.S.C.A. for the Second Circuit, this politician would 
have secured even greater protection for his corrupt and criminal perversion of the power of 
government. 

9. I admit, however, that because of Plaintiff Kaul, none of these hypotheticals occurred and my 
career was negatively impacted. 

10. I admit the negative impact on my career in conjunction with preventing Plaintiff Kaul from 
exposing my crimes did cause me to threaten him with contempt and incarceration. 

11. I admit I know of The Kaul Cases attempt on June 14/15, 2023 to have Plaintiff Kaul, while 
illegally incarcerated at the medium-maximum security Mercer County Prison in Trenton, NJ, 

3 



Case 3:24-cv-00621-CWR-LGI     Document 24     Filed 01/06/25     Page 4 of 28

poisoned with the anti-psychotic medication, Librium, in order to have him deemed mentally 
unstable and committed indefinitely to a psychiatric institution. 

12. I admit that on October 9, 2024, Plaintiff Kaul filed Kll-23, in which I am accused of, 
amongst other things, bribery, conspiracy, perpetrating quid pro quo schemes, wire fraud, and 
public corruption. 

13.1 admit that I was served with a copy of Kll-23 on October 16, 2024 at approximately 9:30 
am EST in my courtroom at the S.D.N.Y. by a security officer employed by the United States 
District Court. 

14. I admit that on November 15, 2024, the Court ordered I answer the Complaint by December 
16, 2024. 

15. I admit that on December 16, 2024 I filed documents entitled 'MOTION TO DISMISS' (D.E. 
12) and 'MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT MOTION TO DISMISS' (D.E. 13). 

16. I admit that in neither of these documents did I deny the allegations/facts of bribery, 
conspiracy, perpetrating quid pro quo schemes, wire fraud, and public corruption. 
asserted in the Complaint in Kll-23. 

17. I admit I knew/know that in failing to deny the allegations/facts I did violate the Court's 
November 15, 2024 order. 

18. I admit I knew/know that in failing to deny the allegations/facts I did cause them to become 
admitted for all purposes pursuant to Rule 8(b)(6). 

19. I admit I knew/know that the allegations/facts constitute the commission of violations of 
criminal law. 

20. I admit I knew/know that the immunity defense I raised in my impermissibly filed 'MOTION 
TO DISMISS' (D.E. 12) and 'MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT MOTION TO DISMISS' (D.E. 13) 
were/are invalid because my Rule 8(b)(6) admissions of my commission of bribery related crime 
are not protected by any immunity defense. 

21. I admit I am guilty of the charges levied in Kll-23. 

22.1 admit that if I were innocent of the charges levied in Kll-20 I would simply have denied 
them, but I did not because I am guilty of the charges. 

23. I admit I know that on December 20, 2024, Plaintiff Kaul filed a 'NOTICE OF DEFENDANT 
OETKEN'S ADMISSION OF FACT PURSUANT TO HIS RULE 8(b)(6) FAILURE TO DENY THE 
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ALLEGATIONS AND FACTS ASSERTED WITHIN THE COMPLAINT, AND PURSUANT TO HIS 
VIOLATION OF THE COURT'S DECEMBER 16, 2024 ORDER TO ANSWER THE COMPAINT'. 

24. I admit I know that a responsive pleading was ordered by the Court on November 15, 2024. 

25. I admit I know that pursuant to Rule 8(b)(6) the "Effect of Failing to Deny An Allegation­
other than one relating to damages-is admitted if a responsive pleading is required and the 
allegation is not denied." 

26. I admit I know that on December 27, 2024, Plaintiff Kaul filed a 'REPLY DEFENDANT OETKEN 
MEMORANDUM OF MOTION TO DISMISS'. 

27.1 admit I read Plaintiff Kaul's 'REPLY DEFENDANT OETKEN MEMORANDUM OF MOTION TO 
DISMISS' through the perspective of a lawyer and judge. 

28.1 admit that through the perspective of a lawyer and judge I agree with every argument 
submitted in Plaintiff Kaul's 'REPLY DEFENDANT OETKEN MEMORANDUM OF MOTION TO 
DISMISS'. 

29. I admit that of the thousands of opinions I have issued in my judicial career in cases 
involving charges of bribery against public servants, many of them contain arguments either 
identical or consistent with those submitted by Plaintiff Kaul. 

30.1 admit that in these cases I have ruled in favor of government prosecutors who have 
submitted such arguments against criminal defendants charged with bribery and public 
corruption. 

31. I admit that in these cases in which guilty verdicts have been rendered, I did sentence the 
defendants to terms of imprisonment and substantial fines. 

32. I admit that through the perspective of a defendant, who is also a lawyer and judge, I should 
be held at least to the standard of the common man committing common crime if not higher. 

33. I admit that my Rule 8(b)(6) related admittance of the facts of bribery, conspiracy, 
perpetrating quid pro quo schemes, wire fraud, and public corruption asserted in the Complaint 
in Kll-23, did deprive me of any immunity. 

34. I admit that in the Complaint (D.E. 1 Page 14 of 54), Plaintiff Kaul identified the facts that 
caused me to be deprived of' ... ANY/ALL IMMUNITIES'. 

35. I admit that in my December 16, 2024 'MOTION TO DISMISS' (D.E. 12) and 'MEMORANDUM 
IN SUPPORT MOTION TO DISMISS' (D.E. 13) I did not deny any of the facts asserted in paras. 39 
to 45 or indeed any of the facts within the entire Complaint. 
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36.1 admit that on January 3, 2025 IN Kll-23 I submitted my 'REPLY IN SUPPORT OF MOTION 
TO DISMISS'. 

37. I admit that in my 'REPLY IN SUPPORT OF MOTION TO DISMISS' I submitted an answer to 
the bribery charge levied in the Kll-23 Complaint. 

38. I admit, however, that the answer was intended to purposefully mislead the Court into 
believing Defendant Oetken was innocent of the levied charges of bribery, conspiracy, 
perpetrating quid pro quo schemes, wire fraud, and public corruption. 

39. I admit that one of the answers in furtherance of this deception is: "However, Judge 
Oetken has committed no crimes and Kaul's blanket statement is insufficient to support a 
finding of criminal activity." (D.E. 23 Page 2 of 5). 

40. I admit that I and my lawyers conspired to manufacture a, and to use my own word, 
"blanket" statement in which I did not specifically deny having committed the crimes of 
bribery, conspiracy, perpetrating quid pro quo schemes, wire fraud, and public corruption. 

41. I admit that I and my lawyers believed that if we used the word "crimes" in a general sense 
it would deceive the Court into believing I had not committed bribery, conspiracy, perpetrating 
quid pro quo schemes, wire fraud, and public corruption. 

42. I admit that the deceptive state-of-mind of myself and my lawyers is evidenced in our use of 
the term "blanket" to describe, albeit a false description, of Plaintiff Kaul's claims, when in fact 
it represents, both in textual and meaning proximity, my use of the general term "crimes" to 
appear to but not actually deny my commission of bribery, conspiracy, perpetrating quid pro 
quo schemes, wire fraud, and public corruption. 

43.1 admit that I and my lawyers, knowing I had committed crime, could not simply deny the 
allegations/facts, and so filed a motion to dismiss, while planning to use my final reply to 
deceive the Court into believing I committed no crime, knowing that Plaintiff Kaul could not 
respond to my final "crimes" based reply. 

44. I admit that I did commit crimes, which explains the extent to which I have proceeded since 
2023 in attempting to prevent other district courts and judges from hearing any of The Kaul 
Cases. 

45. I admit that my nationwide injunction against a single litigant is a gross deviation from the 
true purpose of such restrictions, and in conjunction with threats of contempt does constitute 
an unprecedented violation of the human/civil/constitutional rights of person whose 
life/liberty/property/reputation rights have been illegally deprived for almost thirteen (13) 
years and who has not once been provided an opportunity to litigate his claims through 
discovery to trial. 
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46. I admit that my conduct and that of The Kaul Cases Defendants is, other than being illegal, 
does evidence our guilt of the levied charges to a criminal standard. 
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Defendant Oetken Career Milestones And Transition From Lawful To 
Unlawful Conduct 

47. I admit I graduated from high school in or around 1984. 

48. I admit I attended college from 1984 to 1988 and did graduate. 

49. I admit I attended law school from 1988 to 1992 and did graduate. 

SO. I admit I did take and pass the NYS Bar Exam after I graduated law school. 

51. I admit I did swear an oath upon admission to the NYS Bar. 

52. I admit the oath involved a promise to uphold the law, faithfully support the Constitution 
and conduct my practice of law in an ethical manner. 

53. I admit that after graduating law school and in the period from 1992 to approximately 2002 
I provided legal counsel to politicians. 

54. I admit that in the period from 2002 to 20111 worked in the private sector and provided 
legal counsel to publicly traded corporations. 

55. I admit that as a consequence of working in the milieu of the political and corporate worlds, 
I came to witness and know their corrupt intersection. 

56. I admit that as a consequence of being immersed in this corrupt politico-corporate milieu, I 
began to view profit-purposed manipulations of law and ethics as a 'normal' way of conducting 
public service and business. 

57. I admit that being immersed in these manipulations caused a perversion of my moral and 
ethical framework. 

58. I admit that being immersed in these manipulations caused me to become highly 
experienced in knowingly dishonest perversions of the law to suit political and business 
agendas. 

59. I admit that in 2010 I was sponsored by the US Senator for New York to the federal bench. 

60. I admit that in 20111 was assigned to the federal bench in the Southern District of New 
York. 

61. I admit that upon assignment to the federal bench I did, with my hand on the Bible, swear 
an oath to the Constitution and a promise to faithfully uphold the law. 
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62. I admit that in the period from 2011 to 2025, I adjudicated approximately four thousand 
five hundred (4,500) cases. 

63. I admit that the majority of the cases involved commercial, business and financial disputes 
involving mostly high net worth individuals and financial sector corporations. 

64. I admit that I also presided over criminal cases in which defendants were convicted by juries 
of bribery and public corruption. 

65. I admit that I sentenced to jail persons convicted of bribery and public corruption. 

66. I admit that in my sentencing remarks in these bribery and public corruption cases, I 
described the perniciousness of the offenses in that when public servants violate the public 
trust, there can be nothing more corrosive to the well-being of society and its democratic 
institutions. 

67. I admit that in many of the public corruption cases filed before me and within the S.D.N.Y., 
the press conference given by the U.S. Attorney would invariably involve how such conduct 
would not be tolerated in the S.D.N.Y and how the perpetrators would be tenaciously pursued 
and prosecuted. 

68. I admit that by the time I was appointed to the federal bench I was well-versed in the 
manufacturing of schemes by lawyers in which the law is perverted, violated and ignored to 
provide justification and cover for the furtherance of knowingly illegal agendas of politicians 
and corporations. 

69. I admit that I know the principal reason I was nominated by the US Senator for NY was my 
lengthy pre-judicial experience in the corrupt manufacturing of politico-corporate malfeasance 
supporting legal opinion. 

70. I admit that I know my appointment had nothing to do with an aspect of my personal life, 
an aspect that was however conveniently and publicly exploited by the politicians. 

71. I admit that over the almost fourteen (14) years I have sat on the federal bench, there has 
been an escalation in the brazenness and seriousness of the crimes, violations and other 
wrongdoing I have committed against the law, the public and the United States. 

72. I admit that I know one of the reasons for this unchecked escalation has been the fact that 
no lawyer or judge has accused me of engaging in corrupt activities. 

73. I admit I know that within the court, the non-lawyer and non-judicial staff that work in my 
courtroom do know of my corrupt activities. 
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74. I admit I know that one of the reasons no lawyer of judge has reported me is because they 
believe their 'whistleblowing' will cause the politician who sponsored me to retaliate and 
attempt to silence them. 

75. I admit that the politician's retaliation and 'whistleblower' silencing would stem from his 
fear that the 'whistleblower' exposing of my corrupt use of the federal bench to further his 
schemes of political corruption with Wall Street based insurance, hospital, pharmaceutical and 
banking corporations, would end his political career. 

76. I admit I know that in 2019, Plaintiff Kaul sued this politician in the S.D.N.Y. on charges of 
racketeering, bribery, quid pro quo schemes and public corruption. 

77. I admit I knew this fact when Plaintiff Kaul filed Kll-7 on August 19, 2021, and despite 
knowing I was conflicted, I did nonetheless adjudicate the case. 
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Common Knowledge Of The Truth Of The Crimes Of The Kaul Cases 
Defendants 

78. I admit that as a district judge in a highly staffed district court with unrestricted access to 
evidence/facts and persons possessing this corpus of evidence/fact AND having been involved 
as a Judge, Co-conspirator and Defendant in The Kaul Cases since 20211 have come to know 
the truth of the crimes of The Kaul Cases Defendants. 

79.1 admit I know that having been involved as a Judge, Co-conspirator and Defendant in The 
Kaul Cases since 2021 The Kaul Cases Defendants have come to know the truth of each other's 
crimes, including mine. 

80. I admit I know that each Defendant played a particular role in the 'Kaul Elimination 
Conspiracy'. 

81. I admit I know that the two fundamental elements of the scheme pertained to those who 
purchased state power and those who sold and exercised it. 

82. I admit I know that Defendants Allstate/Heary purchased state power from Defendant 
Christie through bribery. 

83. I admit I know Defendant Christie abused his power to cause the illegal revocation of 
Plaintiff Kaul's license and an ongoing deprivation of his life/liberty/property/reputation and 
violation of his human/civil/constitutional rights. 

84. I admit I know that Defendants Allstate/Heary purchased state power from Defendant 
Solomon through bribery. 

85. I admit I know Defendant Solomon abused his power to cause the illegal revocation of 
Plaintiff Kaul's license and an ongoing deprivation of his life/liberty/property/reputation and 
violation of his human/civil/constitutional rights. 

86. I admit I know that Defendant Allstate purchased regulatory power from Defendant FSMB 
through bribery. 

87. I admit I know Defendant FSMB abused its power to cause an illegal obstruction of Plaintiff 
Kaul's efforts to have his illegal revoked NJ license reinstated and or obtain a license in another 
state. 

88.1 admit I know Defendant FSMB abused its power to cause an ongoing deprivation of 
Plaintiff Kaul's life/liberty/property/reputation and violation of his human/civil/constitutional 
rights. 
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89. I admit I know that Defendant Allstate purchased bankruptcy trustee power from 
Defendant Stolz through bribery. 

90. I admit I know that Defendant Stolz abused his power in failing to file claims and or collect 
the over $52 million dollars owed to Plaintiff Kaul's estate/eighty-three creditors of this estate 
by Defendant Allstate and other insurance companies. 

91.1 admit I know the truth of the factual foundation of all The Kaul Cases, including Kll-7 and 
Kll-20. 
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The Crime Of The September 12, 2022 'Injunction' in K11-7 -August 
19, 2021 To September 12, 2022 

92. I admit that on August 19, 2021, Kll-7 was filed in the United States District Court for the 
Southern District of New York. 

93. I admit that the case was not placed into the court's random judicial assignment system. 

94. I admit that the case was improperly assigned to me because I had informed the Clerk's 
office to inform me of any cases that involved publicly traded corporations. 

95. I admit that upon being informed of the case filing, and reviewing the complaint, I did come 
to know that in Kl Plaintiff Kaul had caused the May 22, 2019 disqualification of the district 
judge in the District of New Jersey for having received bribes. 

96. I admit that I knew/know that the district judge in Kl is the brother-in-law of the politician 
who sponsored me to the federal bench. 

97. I admit that I knew these facts presented a conflict of interest, but did nonetheless have the 
case assigned to me. 

98. I admit that I instructed the court not to assign a magistrate judge to the case. 

99. I admit that my instruction to not have an independent magistrate judge assigned pertained 
to my intent to corruptly adjudicate the case. 

100. I admit that upon adopting judicial control of the case, I recognized that Plaintiff Kaul was 
cognizant and highly attuned to the defendants schemes of judicial corruption. 

101. I admit that recognizing Plaintiff Kaul's acute awareness of this issue, it was imperative for 
me to administer the case in a manner that attempted to deceive Plaintiff Kaul into believing I 
was impartially administering the case. 

102. I admit that a principal purpose of deceiving Plaintiff Kaul into believing I was impartially 
administering the case and that it would proceed into discovery, pertained to the belief of the 
defendants and myself that if Plaintiff Kaul thought Kll-7 would move into discovery, then he 
would stop filing cases in other districts and would dismiss any pending cases. 

103. I admit that I and the defendants schemed that once Plaintiff Kaul, believing that Kll-17 
would advance into discovery, had dismissed any pending cases and not filed any new cases, I 
would dismiss Kll-7 with prejudice and enter a nationwide 'injunction'. 

13 



Case 3:24-cv-00621-CWR-LGI     Document 24     Filed 01/06/25     Page 14 of 28

104. I admit that my receipt of the bribes from the Kll-7 defendants was transferred in partial 
payments from the commencement of the scheme to the point at which Plaintiff Kaul's right to 
appeal had expired. 

105. I admit that to attempt to conceal the bribes, they were transferred through off-shore 
institutions and through other schemes involving the dispensation of shares in publicly traded 
corporations. 

106. I admit that in the perpetration of the bribery related quid pro quo scheme, I utilized my 
prior experience as counsel to corrupt politicians and corporations to implement schemes to 
attempt to conceal the bribes. 

107.1 admit that both I and the defendants were convinced that my deceitful administration 
and adjudication of Kll-7 would cause an effective elimination of Plaintiff Kaul by forever 
precluding his ability/rights to secure justice for the crimes committed against his 
life/liberty/property/reputation. 

108. I admit that I and the defendants did believe that such an effective elimination would 
cause Plaintiff Kaul to leave the United States and or commit suicide. 

109. I admit that I and the defendants, despite knowing that Plaintiff Kaul had two (2) young 
children, did not care that our actions could cause his death. 

110. I admit that the only concern I and the defendants possessed was that of continuing to 
profit from our crimes. 

111. I admit that the scheme was of a 'bait and switch' nature. 

112. I admit that in the perpetration of the scheme I used the docket of the United States 
District Court to publish knowingly fraudulent orders purposed to deceive Plaintiff Kaul into 
believing I would advance the case into discovery. 

113. I admit that from the commencement and throughout the perpetration of the scheme 
there were extensive and detailed communications between myself and agents acting on my 
behalf and the defendants and agents acting on their behalf. 

114.1 admit that these communications involved the 'who/what/where/when/how/why' 
specifications of the quid pro quo scheme in which in return for the bribes I would dismiss Kll-
7 with prejudice and enter a nationwide 'injunction'. 

115. I admit I knew these communications were illegal and in furtherance of a knowingly illegal 
scheme. 
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116. I admit that these communications were conducted in a knowingly illegal manner across 
the US wires. 

117. I admit that I and the defendants knew/know that the use of the US wires constitutes the 
felony of wire fraud. 

118. I admit I know that these communications were also conducted in face-to-face meetings in 
my chambers in the S.D.N.Y. 

119. I admit I knew/know that the use of my chambers to further a knowingly illegal scheme 
through face-to-face meetings was/is illegal. 

120. I admit that these 'secret' meetings in my chambers were conducted after my court staff 
had departed the building. 

121. I admit that some of the communications occurred between myself and agents acting on 
my behalf and the defendants and agents acting on their behalf in places outside of the court 
building. 

122. I admit that in these non-court meetings the arrival and departure at the meeting location 
of the persons involved was staggered, in order to avoid any person observing the gathering of 
high-profile lawyers and an equally high-profile federal judge. 

123. I admit that despite knowing of the illegality of the communications, of their conduction 
within my chambers within the S.D.N.Y. and of their furtherance of knowingly illegal bribery 
related scheme, I did nonetheless commit these crimes in a knowingly illegal manner. 

124. I admit that my willful and knowing perpetration of these crimes while in possession of the 
power of a federal judge does constitute a high crime against not just Plaintiff Kaul and the 
United States but against the Constitution of the United States. 

125. I admit that during the digital and face-to-face communications, the timing of my orders of 
dismissal with prejudice and injunction was discussed. 

126. I admit that I and the defendants agreed that the orders would be entered once Plaintiff 
Kaul had dismissed all pending cases and there were no remaining cases within the United 
States District Court through which he could prosecute The Kaul Cases Defendants. 

127. I admit that during the communications I and the defendants agreed that the September 
12, 2022 opinion/order/injunction would be co-drafted. 

128. I admit that during the communications I and the defendants agreed that the September 
12, 2022 opinion/order/injunction would contain no analysis of any of Plaintiff Kaul's 
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arguments and or refutation and distinguishment of the arguments/cases cited by the Kll-7 
Defendants. 

129. I admit that during the communications I and the defendants agreed that the September 
12, 2022 opinion/order/injunction would encourage Plaintiff Kaul to appeal the 
opinion/order/injunction in order to attempt to further preclude him from filing cases in other 
districts. 

130. I admit that during the communications I and the defendants agreed that we knew any 
appeal would be denied, because certain judges on the appeal court had been sponsored by 
the same politician who had sponsored me. 

131. I admit that during the communications I and the defendants agreed that the appeal 
would be denied because certain judges on the appeal court continued to participate in quid 
pro quo schemes with the insurance and banking defendants in Kll-7. 

132. I admit that during the communications I and the defendants agreed that if the 
opinion/order/injunction were drafted in as defamatory a manner as possible, it would 
demoralize Plaintiff Kaul to the point where he would discontinue his efforts to hold The Kaul 
Cases Defendants liable for their crimes/violations/injuries. 

133. I admit that I and the defendants agreed that if the opinion/order/injunction were drafted 
in as defamatory a manner as possible, it would, if Plaintiff Kaul did not appeal and filed new 
cases, cause other judges to dismiss these cases. 

134. I admit that despite knowing the truth of the factual foundation of Kll-7, I did dismiss the 
case with prejudice and enter a nationwide injunction on September 12, 2022 

135. I admit I know that the dismissal and nationwide injunction were the product of an illegal 
bribery related quid pro quo scheme. 

136. I admit that on September 14, 2022, Plaintiff Kaul submitted a notice to the S.D.N.Y. that 
was addressed to me and in which he requested a list of my financial holdings, my Forms AOl0 
and the substance of all ex parte communications with the Kll-7 Defendants. 

137. I admit that since September 14, 2022 I have failed to disclose to the court, to the docket 
or to Plaintiff Kaul any of my financial holdings, ex parte communications and or any form of 
bribe, be it tangible/intangible, that was received through any means by me, or any party 
related to me in the third-degree. 

138. I admit that my issuance on September 12, 2022 of a knowingly fraudulent document, that 
of the injunction, did become illegally incorporated into the fabric of American jurisprudence 
and the court records of the United States District Court. 

16 



Case 3:24-cv-00621-CWR-LGI     Document 24     Filed 01/06/25     Page 17 of 28

139. I admit that the incorporation of a knowingly fraudulent document issued by a judicial 
officer, into the court records of the United States District Court constitutes a treasonous crime 
against the United States. 
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The Motion For Disqualification + Kll-14 - October 6, 2022 To August 
23,2023 

140. I admit that on October 6, 2022, Plaintiff Kaul filed a motion for my disqualification. 

141. I admit that the motion was based partly on my commission of the crimes of bribery, 
conspiracy, perpetrating quid pro quo schemes, wire fraud, and public corruption. 

142. I admit that the motion was based partly on my collusion and conspiracy in corruptly using 
the authority of the United States District Court to attempt to conceal The Kaul Cases 
Defendants crimes of mail fraud/wire fraud/bribery/obstruction of 
justice/kickbacks/perjury/evidential falsification/witness tampering/kidnapping/false 
indictment/false arrest/false imprisonment/attempted killing. 

143. I admit that my failure to timely address Plaintiff Kaul's October 6, 2022 motion for 
disqualification and deny the within facts did cause the admission of those facts. 

144. I admit that the motion was based in part on my failure to analyze/refute/contest any of 
Plaintiff Kaul's one hundred and seventy-three (173) arguments/sub-arguments submitted in 
Kll-7. 

145.1 admit that the motion was based in part on my knowingly fraudulent reliance on law, the 
invalidity of which was shown by Plaintiff Kaul to definitively not support the entry of an 
injunction. 

146. I admit that the motion was based on my bribery related derogation of the relevant law 
and my threat to hold Plaintiff Kaul in contempt if he violated my knowingly illegal 
order/injunction. 

147. I admit I knew/know that the order/injunction had no basis in fact or law, but was simply 
the product of judicial corruption, for which I threatened to hold Plaintiff Kaul in contempt if he 
violated. 

148. I admit that my use of the US wires to enter this knowingly fraudulent order/injunction 
onto the federal docket constitutes the offense of wire fraud. 

149. I admit that within the motion for disqualification and at D.E. 171 Page 12 of 39, Plaintiff 
Kaul did state: "Democracy and the peaceful order of society cease to exist when the judiciary 
is morally bent, perverted from fact and willfully blind to the law. When partiality, personal 
bias and conflicts of interest pollute the administration of justice, the public loses confidence 
in the system of justice, and lawlessness displaces lawfulness." 
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150. I admit I know of the December 4, 2024 killing of the CEO of the healthcare insurance 
company, United Health Care by Luigi Mangeone. 

151. I admit that it was an unlawful act, but one born out of the lethal lawlessness of the 
corporate health insurance industry and the failure of the government to hold it accountable. 

152. I admit that the killing sparked a nationwide public outrage and calls to hold the insurance 
industry legally accountable. 

153. I admit that I know the reason for the killing of the CEO pertained to his directives to his 
corporation to deny life-saving care to premium paying patients. 

154. I admit that I was a corporate lawyer, and worked for corporations with investments in 
highly profitable healthcare insurance corporations. 

155. I admit that I know Kll-7 Defendants Allstate Insurance Company and Geico profit from 
the sale of auto accident-related healthcare insurance policies. 

156. I admit I know that these policies are purposed to pay for the provision of care to patients 
injured in car accidents. 

157. I admit I know that in Kll-7 and throughout The Kaul Cases Plaintiff Kaul has claimed that 
Defendants Allstate/Geico/Blue Cross Blue Shield (Kll-22) conduct the same care denying 
"pattern of racketeering" as does United Healthcare. 

158. I admit that the claims regarding denial of care are located at - D.E. 14 Para. 106 Page 27 of 
432- D.E. 14 Para. 132 Page 34 of 432. 

159. I admit I know that in the Kll-7 Complaint (D.E. 14 Para. 106 Page 27 of 432) Plaintiff Kaul 
states with regards to Defendants Allstate/Geico: " ... whose shared economic mission is the 
maximization of corporate profit and share price, through the exploitation of the American 
public (denial of care) and medical profession (license suspension/revocation/incarceration) 

II 

160. I admit that despite knowing these facts of patient care denial, I dismissed Plaintiff Kaul's 
claims Defendants Allstate Insurance Company and Geico because I had willingly and knowingly 
accepted bribes. 

161. I admit that my bribe related dismissal of Kll-7 did aid and abet the perpetuation of the 
insurance industry's 'deny ... delay ... defend' scheme of the denial of life-saving care to the 
American public. 
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162. I admit that as a lawyer and federal judge I understand RICO's vicarious liability doctrine, 
wherein the liability of the crimes/offenses/violations/injuries caused by any of the conspiracy's 
perpetrators and or co-conspirators becomes the liability of all perpetrators/co-conspirators. 

163. I admit that I am as responsible as Defendants Allstate/Geico for the immense harm 
caused to those members of the American public whose life-saving and life-altering care was 
denied by these for-profit corporations. 

164. I admit that I eventually adjudicated the motion for disqualification on August 14, 2023. 

165. I admit that I denied the motion for disqualification in an unsubstantiated order that failed 
to address/contest/refute/analyze the cited and controlling law. 

166. I admit that I denied the motion for disqualification in an unsubstantiated order in which I 
failed to deny any of the facts of amongst other things, bribery/public corruption/wire 
fraud/conspiracy. 

167. I admit that I denied the motion for disqualification in an unsubstantiated order, in which I 
failed to deny the fact that I engaged in a bribery related quid pro quo scheme with the Kll-7 
Defendants, in which in return for the bribes I dismissed Kll-7 with prejudice and entered a 
nationwide injunction against Plaintiff Kaul. 

168. I admit that the reason for the delay in denying the disqualification motion pertained to 
the fact that the district judge in Kll-14 believed my nationwide injunction was indeed the 
product of bribery, because I had failed to deny the facts asserted in Plaintiff Kaul's September 
14, 2022 notice (D.E. 170) and the October 6, 2022 motion for disqualification (D.E. 171}. 

169. I admit that the district judge in Kll-14 indicated that if I did not deny the motion for 
disqualification, she would not dismiss Kll-14 based on my September 12, 2022 purported 
injunction. 

170. I admit that the district judge in Kll-14 indicated that if she dismissed Kll-14 on an 
injunction that was the product of crime, she would become liable for the crime. 

171. I admit that the district judge in Kll-14 indicated that the motion for disqualification had 
to be denied before she would issue her denial of Kll-14 based on the Kll-7 September 12, 
2022 purported injunction. 

172.1 admit that the Kll-7 Defendants who were now the Kll-14 Defendants employed 
threats and persuasion to have me deny the motion for disqualification, in order that the 
district judge in Kll-14 would dismiss the case. 

173. I admit that I recognized that if I did not comply with the demands of the Kll-14 district 
judge and the Kll-7 /Kll-14 Defendants, my criminal acts of, amongst other things, 
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bribery/public corruption and wire fraud would be exposed and subject me to impeachment 
and criminal prosecution. 

174. I admit that as a consequence of these demands and threats, I did, on August 14, 2023 
deny the motion for disqualification without denying any of the within facts of, amongst other 
things, bribery/public corruption/wire fraud. 

175. I admit I knew my actions did constitute the commission of crime, in that I aided and 
abetted the Defendants conversion of the S.D.N.Y. into a "racketeering enterprise" through 
which they and I perpetrated a knowingly illegal "pattern of racketeering'' a purpose of which 
was to attempt to prevent the exposure of my crimes in other district courts over which I had 
no control. 

176. I admit I know that after having agreed to the demands and threats of the Kll-7 /Kll-14 
Defendants and the Kll-14 district judge, Kll-14 was dismissed with prejudice on August 23, 
2023 based on the Kll-7 September 12, 2022 injunction. 

177. I admit that I experienced a sense of relief at having had another district court appear to 
legitimize my September 12, 2022 injunction. 

178. I admit that even though I experienced a sense of relief at a public display of such 
apparent legitimization, I knew the district judge in Kll-14 recognized the injunction was a 
product of a quid pro quo scheme of bribery. 

179. I admit I believed that the dismissal of Kll-14 would convince Plaintiff Kaul to cease his 
campaign of litigation. 

180. I admit the incorrectness of my belief is a direct reflection of Plaintiff Kaul's recognition of 
the seriousness of my crimes. 

181. I admit I know that Plaintiff Kaul's recognition of the seriousness of my crimes is based on 
his knowledge of my recognition of the seriousness of my crimes. 
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K11-10 And The Knowingly Illegal Issuance Of Threats To Hold Plaintiff 
Kaul In Contempt If He Failed To Dismiss K11-17 And K11-20 - March 
9, 2023 To October 2, 2024 

182. I admit I know that Plaintiff Kaul did not appeal the September 12, 2022 order/injunction. 

183. I admit I know that on September 14, 2022, at D.E. 170, Plaintiff Kaul filed a notice with the 
Clerk of the Court for the S.D.N.Y. that requested I produce and publish to the court docket my 
financial holdings and the contents of all ex parte communications with the Kll-17 Defendants. 

184. I admit that since September 14, 2022 I have failed to disclose to the court, to the docket 
or to Plaintiff Kaul any of my financial holdings, ex pa rte communications and or any form of 
bribe, be it tangible/intangible, that was received through any means by me, or any party 
related to me in the third-degree. 

185. I admit that I have failed and continue to fail to disclose the requested information 
because I am guilty of having participated in a bribery related quid pro quo scheme with the 
Kll-7 Defendants. 

186. I admit I know that on March 9, 2023, Plaintiff Kaul filed Kll-10 in the S.D.N.Y. 

187. I admit I came to know the case had been randomly assigned to another district judge, 
who had been recently appointed to the federal bench. 

188. I admit I know that the staff in the court's filing office came to know in or around late 
September-October 2022 of the bribery related quid pro quo scheme in which I had engaged. 

189. I admit I know that as a consequence of the staff coming to know of the scheme, they did 
not inform me of the filing of Kll-10. 

190. I admit that sometime after the filing of Kll-10 the Kll-10 Defendants engaged in ex 
parte communications with me during which they informed me that Plaintiff Kaul had filed Kll-
10. 

191. I admit that upon becoming aware of Kll-10, I ensured the district judge became aware of 
the order/injunction I had entered in Kll-7 on September 12, 2022. 

192. I admit I know that as a consequence of my knowingly illegal September 12, 2022 
order/injunction, the district judge in Kll-10 did on May 10, 2023 dismiss Kll-10 with 
prejudice. 
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193. I admit I know that on November 20, 2023, Plaintiff Kaul filed Kll-17 in the U.S.D.C. for the 
E.D.N.C. 

194. I admit that in late November 2023 the Kll-17 Defendants engaged in ex parte 
communications with me during which they informed me that Plaintiff Kaul had filed Kll-17. 

195. I admit that in becoming aware of Kll-17, I came to know that Plaintiff Kaul had informed 
the district judge of the injunction by submitting a copy within Exhibit 14 and referencing the 
injunction within the Complaint. 

196. I admit that in coming to know that the district judge had admitted the case with full 
knowledge of the injunction, I decided to take no action. 

197. I admit that an element of me deciding to take no action pertained to the fact that no 
discovery order had been entered. 

198. I admit that the lack of a discovery order would prevent Plaintiff Kaul from serving 
discovery upon me and exposing my corrupt actions surrounding the issuance of the September 
12, 2022 injunction. 

199. I admit that in a period from November 20, 2023, the Kll-17 Defendants sent me an ex 
parte letter requesting I issue an order compelling Plaintiff Kaul to dismiss Kll-17. 

200. I admit this letter was not published to the docket of the S.D.N.Y. 

201.1 admit no other judge nor court employee in the S.D.N.Y. was made aware of this letter. 

202. I admit the reason this letter was kept concealed from other judges and staff was to 
prevent any investigation into the corrupt circumstances surrounding my bribery related 
issuance of the injunction. 

203. I admit I took no action on the letter as no discovery order had been entered in Kll-17. 

204. I admit I know that on March 13, 2023, a discovery order was entered in Kll-17. 

205. I admit that on March 13, 2023 the Kll-17 Defendants informed me of the issuance of the 
discovery order in Kll-17. 

206. I admit that the issuance of the discovery order in Kll-17 convinced me that Plaintiff Kaul 
would use the tools of discovery to expose the facts of my bribery related quid pro quo scheme 
with the Kll-7 Defendants. 
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207. I admit that the issuance of the discovery order in Kll-17 convinced me that Plaintiff Kaul 
would use the tools of discovery to expose the identities of all persons involved in the bribery 
related quid pro quo scheme with the Kll-7 Defendants. 

208. I admit that both I and the Kll-17 Defendants in recognizing the risk of such exposure, did 
agree that I should issue an order to Plaintiff Kaul threatening to hold him in contempt if he did 
not dismiss Kll-17. 

209. I admit that on March 15, 2024 I issued an order to Plaintiff Kaul threatening to hold him in 
contempt if he did not dismiss Kll-17, and had this order published to the docket of the 
S.D.N.Y. 

210. I admit I know that the issuance of this order was illegal and was the product of the crime 
of the bribery related quid pro quo scheme that caused the September 12, 2022 issuance of the 
injunction. 

211. I admit that despite knowing the issuance of the March 15, 2024 was illegal, I did 
nonetheless issue the order in the belief that it would prevent Plaintiff Kaul from using 
discovery to expose the facts of my crimes and of those associated with the commission of the 
crimes. 

212. I admit I know that having had the knowingly illegal order published to the S.D.N.Y. docket, 
it was downloaded by the Kll-27 Defendants. 

213. I admit I know that having downloaded the March 15, 2024 order threatening Plaintiff Kaul 
with contempt if he did not dismiss Kll-17, the Kll-17 Defendants did on March 18, 2024 
publish the order to the docket of the E.D.N.C. (D.E. 72}. 

214. I admit that the order required Plaintiff Kaul to dismiss Kll-17 by March 29, 2024 or be 
held in contempt. 

215. I admit I know the March 18, 2024 filing of the order on the docket of the E.D.N.C. was 
immediately brought to the attention of the district judge. 

216. I admit I believed that Plaintiff Kaul would dismiss Kll-17, having experienced the 
dismissal of Kll-14 based on the Kll-7 injunction. 

217.1 admit I was wrong. 

218. I admit that on March 25, 2024, Plaintiff Kaul filed suit (Kll-18} against me in the E.D.N.C. 

219. I admit I know the case was ultimately assigned to the Chief Judge who was already 
adjudicating Kll-17. 
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220. I admit I did not deny any of the allegations/facts in K11-18. 

221. I admit I know that my non-denial of the facts did, pursuant to Rule 8(b)(6) cause them to 
become admitted for all purposes. 

222. I admit I know that Kll-18 was dismissed with prejudice on April 8, 2024. 

223. I admit I know that Plaintiff Kaul filed a NOTICE OF APPEAL on May 9, 2024 in the U.S.C.A. 
for the Fourth Circuit. 

224. I admit I know the U.S.C.A., for the Fourth Circuit issued an 'INFOERMAL BRIEFING ORDER' 
on May 9, 2024. 

225. I admit I know that on May 15, 2024, Plaintiff Kaul filed a 'PETITIONER REQUEST 
PURSUANT TO FEDERAL RULE OF EVIDENCE 201, FOR THE COURT TO TAKE JUDICIAL NOTICE OF 
FACTS ADMITTED IN PROCEEDINGS WITH A DIRECT CONNECTION TO THE ISSUES ON APPEAL'. 

226. I admit I know that the basis for the admitted facts pertained to, amongst other things 
Rule "8(b)(6) of the F.R.C.P." (U.S.C.A.4 Appeal: 24-1417 Doc:4-1) 

227. I admit I know that the facts deemed to be admitted by the U.S.C.A. for the Fourth Circuit 
were all the facts from all of The Kaul Cases in which none of the Defendants had denied any of 
the facts. 

228.1 admit I know that the facts deemed to be admitted by the U.S.C.A. for the Fourth Circuit 
were all the facts from all of The Kaul Cases in which the non-denial of all of the facts did, 
pursuant to Rule 8{b)(6) cause the facts to become admitted for all purposes. 

229. I admit I know that Plaintiff Kaul's May 15, 2024 submission included a copy of every 
Complaint from all of The Kaul Cases, and that the submission was three hundred and three 
(303) pages. 

230. I admit I did not file any objection to Plaintiff Kaul's May 15, 2024 submission as to 
admitted facts pursuant to Rule 8(b)(6). 

231. I admit the law deems my non-objection as an admission of the procedural/substantive 
substance of the May 15, 2024 submission. 

232. I admit I know that on May 29, 2024, Plaintiff Kaul filed his 'INFORMAL OPENING BRIEF' 
(U.S.C.A.4 Appeal: 24-1417 Doc:9-1). 

233. I admit I know that within the 'INFORMAL OPENING BRIEF' Plaintiff Kaul raised facts 
related to my perpetration of a bribery related quid pro quo scheme in K11-7. 
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234. I admit I have read the 'INFORMAL OPENING BRIEF' 

235. I admit that one of the statements, of which my non-denial did cause admittance, is: 
"Respondent [Defendant Oetken] continued to fail to provide any evidence/fact that he had 
not participated in a quid pro quo bribery scheme with Defendants, and in fact did not even 
submit or have submitted a statement/affidavit that he had not used his bench in the 
S.D.N.Y. to perpetrate a bribery based "pattern of racketeering'' in Kll-7 or any other cases in 
which he had been involved." 

236. I admit the truth of this statement. 

237. I admit I filed no response to Plaintiff Kaul's 'INFORMAL OPENING BRIEF' because the truth 
of the facts within Kll-18 had been proven and admitted consequent to my non-denial of the 
facts, the non-denial of which did, pursuant to Rule 8(b)(6} cause them to become admitted for 
all purposes. 

238. I admit I did not deny the facts in Kll-18, as I have not denied them in Kll-23 because I 
am guilty of the charges levied in both cases. 

239. I admit I had every opportunity to deny the facts in Kll-18, but did not. 

240. I admit I knew/know that in willfully failing to deny the facts in Kll-18, I did admit the 
facts for all purposes. 

241. I admit I know that in Kll-17 on June 14, 2024, the district judge who dismissed Kll-18 
did, after having entered an order of discovery on March 13, 2024 in full knowledge of my 
September 12, 2022 injunction in Kll-7, did dismiss Kll-17 based on the injunction. 

242. I admit that the district judge in Kll-17 was harassed and intimidated into dismissing a 
case in which he, in his independent judicial authority/judgment had admitted on November 
20, 2023 and entered an order of discovery on March 13, 2024 in full knowledge of the 
injunction. 

243. I admit that when the Kll-17 Defendants informed me of the March 13, 2024 discovery 
order in Kll-17, I recognized the immense risk of Plaintiff Kaul exposing my crimes not just in 
Kll-7, but those I have committed since my appointment to the federal bench in 2011. 

244. I admit that if discovery proceeded in Kll-17, Plaintiff Kaul would expose my long-standing 
bribery related criminal activities. 

245. I admit I know that such an exposure would cause my removal from the federal bench and 
subject me to criminal proceedings. 
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246. I admit I know that in having Kll-14 and Kll-17 dismissed I did continue to perpetuate an 
almost twenty (20) year-long conspiracy against Plaintiff Kaul and a twelve (12) year-long injury 
to his life/liberty/property/reputation and violation of his human/civil/constitutional rights. 

247.1 admit I knew/know that my perpetuation of this conspiracy and rights violations were 
purposed to cause the elimination of Plaintiff Kaul. 

248. I admit that my intention in seeking to cause the elimination of Plaintiff Kaul pertained to 
my fear that his continued prosecution of The Kaul Cases would expose my crimes and those of 
The Kaul Cases Defendants. 

249. I admit that as Plaintiff Kaul proceeded to file Kll-14 and Kll-17, The Kaul Cases 
Defendants became increasingly agitated and aggressive in their threats to expose me if I did 
not follow their orders and have Plaintiff Kaul held in contempt and jailed. 

250. I admit that with these threats I became fearful for my career and life. 

251. I admit that on or about August 26, 2024 I became aware that Plaintiff Kaul had filed Kll-
20 in the United States District Court for the Southern District of Texas. 

252. I admit I know that on August 30, 2024, the Court entered an 'ORDER FOR CONFERENCE 
AND DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTED PARTIES' (D.E. 4). 

253. I admit that on September 16, 2024 the Kll-20 Defendant Federation State Medical 
Boards sent me a letter requesting I order Plaintiff Kaul to dismiss Kll-20 under threat of 
contempt of court (Kll-7: D.E. 174). 

254. I admit that in Kll-7 on September 13, 2022 the Clerk of the Court closed the case. 

255. I admit that no order was ever issued by the Clerk of the Court that re-opened the case. 

256. I admit that in the absence of any order from the Clerk of the Court re-opening the case, 
the case has remained closed since September 13, 2022. 

257. I admit that the continued closure of the case since September 13, 2022 does render all 
filings in the closed case null and void for all intents and purposes. 

258. I admit that in recognizing the fact that the case was closed and in not wanting to again 
expose myself to a lawsuit as Plaintiff Kaul had filed on March 25, 2024 in Kll-17 and which 
was now before the U.S.C.A. for the Fourth Circuit, I hesitated in a manner I had not in Kll-17 
in deciding to threaten Plaintiff Kaul with contempt if he did not dismiss Kll-20. 
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259. I admit that my degree of hesitation and fear had become compounded by the risk of 
having my crimes exposed by the co-conspirator K11-7 /Kll-20 Defendants and or the U.S.C.A. 
for the Fourth Circuit. 

260. I admit I found myself 'backed into a corner' in which I had no option but to obey the order 
of the K11-20 Defendants to issue an order threatening Plaintiff Kaul with contempt if he did 
not dismiss K11-20. 

261. I admit that if Plaintiff Kaul pursued discovery in Kll-20, he would fully expose my crimes 
and those of persons who aided and abetted the crimes. 

262. I admit that on October 2, 2024 under immense duress I issued an order that threatened 
Plaintiff Kaul with contempt if he did not dismiss Kll-20 by October 16, 2024. 

263.1 admit I was convinced Plaintiff Kaul would dismiss K11-20, and that my crimes and those 
of my co-conspirators would be concealed. 

264. I admit that on October 9, 2024, Plaintiff Kaul filed Kll-23, in which I was and am charged 
of, amongst other things, the crimes of bribery/public corruption and the conversion of my 
court at the S.D.N.Y. into a "racketeering enterprise". 

265. I admit I know that on October 9, 2024, in Kll-20, the Court issued a 'SCHEDULING ORDER' 

266. I admit that I was served with a copy of Kll-23 on October 16, 2024 at approximately 9:30 
am EST in my courtroom at the S.D.N.Y. by a security officer employed by the United States 
District Court. 

DATED: JANUARY 6, 2025 
RICHARD ARJUN KAUL, MD 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I certify under penalty of perjury that a copy of the FIRST SUBMISSION OF ADMISSIONS OF 

MATERIAL AND UNDISPUTED FACT PURSUANT TO RULE 8(b)(6) AS TO DEFENDANT JAMES 

PAUL OETKEN was emailed to Defendants' counsel on January 6, 2025. 

DATED: JANUARY 6, 2025 t.~-' 
RICHARD ARJUN KAUL, MD 
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